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Merrill Hall In Faraington, Maine is a large and ornate example of Romanesque 
Revival institutional architecture. Designed by the Lewiston firm of Coombs, Gibbs, 
and Wilkerson and constructed in 1898, the 2^-story building is of brick construction 
with hipped roof and wood and granite trim.

The facade, 4 which faces west, contains a central entrance covered by a one-story 
arched portico supported by Romanesque columns and a set of three semi-circular 
arches. Access to this portico is via a long set of granite steps, as the first-floor 
is above ground level, the basement level being entirely faced in granite. Above 
the entrance is a two-part window, the upper arched part separated from the lower 
by several courses of brick. In the half-story is a hipped dormer containing four 
6/1 windows....The,facade is dominated by corner towers, the one to the right being 
circular with a conical roof and 9/9 windows, the one to the left being square in 
plan with a wooden belfry. The latter tower is the most prominent element in the 
building, and is decorated with diamond-pattern ornamental brick above the second 
story. There is a Palladian window (a minor Colonial Revival element) below the 
belfry on the two exposed sides of the tower.

The sides of the building are four bays long with fenestration similar to that 
of the central facade bay. A semi-circular bay projects from the north-east corner 
of the building. This contains tall, arched windows at the second-story level.

Attached to the rear of the building and facing north is a two-and-one-half 
story gable roofed brick structure seven bays wide and three deep. There is a 
central entrance with steps and an arched portico. Above the entrance in the half 
story is a gable with a single 4/4 window. Fenestration is 6/6 throughout the rest 
of the building. This structure was originally erected in 1888 as an ell to old 
Normal School building of 1864, demolished in 1897.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Western State Normal School first opened its doors to students in 1864 in 
a new building completed the same year and attached to a smaller wood frame structure 
which had been Farmington Academy. After surviving a financial crisis in 1883, the 
Farmington State Normal School as it was now called developed a serious space 
problem owing to rapidly increasing enrollment. In 1888 the old wooden Academy 
building was removed and in its place was erected a 2% story brick ell larger than 
the 1864 main building.

Overcrowding continued as a recurrent difficulty and in 1898 the state legisla­ 
ture appropriated $20,000.00 to repair and enlarge the older part of the Normal 
School building. However, it was soon discovered that this 1864 structure was in 
such bad condition as to warrant no further expenditures upon it. Consequently 
in 1897 it was torn down and the following year the present Merrill Hall was com­ 
pleted on its site with the 1888 ell attached to its rear.

Chief architect for this striking and highly decorative Romanesque Revival 
building was George M. Coombs of Coombs, Gibbs, and Wilkerson, a Lewiston architect­ 
ural firm. Copmbs was an architect of distinction in Maine whose later commissions 
included the Lewiston Public Library of 1902-03 QJ.R. 1/31/78) and the 1908'Kora 
Temple (N.R. 9/11/75) also in Lewiston.

Merrill Hall now serves as the administration building for the University of 
Maine at Farmington which superseded Farmington State Normal School in 1971.

Architecturally Merrill Hall ranks among the very finest of late 19th century 
academic buildings in Maine.
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